
          They are inextricably tied together in history ï Coulson Lake 
and the Clark Ranch.  Lying just south of U.S. Highway 24 a mile or 
so east of Divide, Colorado, the Clark Ranch with its red metal roofs 
shining in the sun evokes memories of the past dating back to the 
homesteading days of the 1860s and 70s.  And the small dam at the 
mouth of Coulson Lake peers gently just beyond the traffic light to 
Meadow Park.  
     While it is not known who the people were that originally home-
steaded the 
land that is 
now the Clark 
Ranch, some 
sources indi-
cate that early 
settlers gath-
ered near a 
small thermal 
artesian spring 
which flowed 
year-round and 
provided much 
needed water 
for them and 
their animals.   
     Fortunately, 
more infor-
mation was 
available from 
old tract rec-
ords and logs of 
early real estate transactions, though they are often difficult to inter-
pret.  Together they helped to knit at least a general chain of owner-
ship back to the issuance of the first land patent over 140 years ago.    
     With the much appreciated assistance of Steve Elak from Fidelity 
National Title Company in Woodland Park, the early records indicate 
that a U.S. Land Patent was issued to a Lyman Boynton in the early 
1870s for a tract of land that contained the present-day Clark Ranch 
and Coulson Lake acreage.  While the dates for succeeding transac-
tions are sketchy at best, there is an interesting list of names of the 

various owners coming forward to the present (see page 2) . 
     The records show that Boynton sold some of his land to Wesley Wheeler and some to Daniel Steffa, an 
historic family name in Teller County.  When Steffa died, his parcel was sold to a man named Van Orden 
who later transferred the property to T. W. Forman.  Forman resold the property to Silas Thompson who 
sold the land to Frank A. Coulson.  
     The Coulson family, comprised through the generations of Frank A. Coulson, Harry A Coulson, Henry 
E. Coulson and Alfred B. (Alf) Coulson, owned the ranch from the time of the building of the Colorado  
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Clark Ranch today at 11990 Highway 24 in Divide, measur-
ing nearly 900 acres.                                Photo by D. Martinek 

Clark Ranch - continued on page 2 



The Clark Ranch - continued from page 1 

 
Midland Railway in 1887 until roughly the 1950s.   
     The family acquired other small parcels which 
were added to the ranch from such parties as:  P. T. 
McCleod, James G. Butler and Charles and Myrtie 
Rust (Charles and Myrtie are listed in the 1900 census 
for Teller County).    

the state for highway use, a portion of the large, 
five-story ice plant located at Lake George was 
moved to the banks of Coulson Lake to provide 
ice to the Midland Terminal, which was also Carl-
tonôs railroad.  A spur line was built from the 
main road to accommodate the ice plant.  Unused 
ice was stored in sheds in sawdust and in nearby 
converted box cars.  Two of those old boxcars are 
still sitting near the western rim of the lake.        
     According to the old-timers, agriculture flour-
ished in the region during the depression years 
because the weather patterns along Ute Pass were 
much different.  More moisture and milder tem-
peratures advanced the growth of lettuce and po-
tato crops which when harvested were sent by 
Midland Terminal refrigeration cars, using the ice 
from Coulson Lake, to Chicago and other eastern 
cities.  However, towards the late 1930s, the pro-
duce industry declined.   
     It was Emil Clark who gave the Clark Ranch a 
name that has come down through the years.  But 

the succession of ownership of the ranch to Clark 
is not a direct line from Alf Coulson.  
     Apparently, Alf sold the ranch, or parts of it, to 
a man named Fox who, in turn, later sold off the 
acreage to Hiram H. and Elizabeth C. Moore, as 
well as J. Reed Williams.  Clark later rejoined 
some of the ranch property by purchasing parcels 
from Elizabeth Moore (from H. H. Mooreôs es-
tate) and from Williams.                   
     Emil Clark (or his estate) owned and operated 
the ranch until the fall of 2005 when title to the 
property was deeded to Dennis Sponseller.  
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     Alf Coulson ran a dairy on the property and re-
portedly developed a small eight-acre lake (called 
Coulson Lake ever since) around 1929 to water his 
cows and provide ice for the storage and transport of 
produce being grown in the Divide area.  The streams 
of Rule and Redner creeks flow through the ranch 
and keep the lake full.   
     However, other sources say that Coulson Lake was 
created during the Great Depression by local CCC 
workers.  The Civilian Conservation Corps was active 
from 1933 to 1942.  Despite confusing dates and histo-
ry, it is known that Coulson also grew lettuce and po-
tatoes on the ranch along with many adjacent neigh-
bors.  The terraces in the nearby meadows can still be 
seen today.  Coulson also served as a Teller County 
Commissioner for a while, as well a member of the 
local school board.  
     Coulson Lake served an important function ï ice.  
Although A. E. Carltonôs Colorado Midland railroad 
ceased operations in 1918, the tracks west of Divide 
remained until the early 1920s.  But before they were 
taken up and the railroadôs right-of-way dedicated to  
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Note:  This is just a general chain of ownership of the

Clark Ranch.  The real estate records are much more 

complicated than this simplification.  

Two old boxcars used to store the ice cut from Coulson 
Lake still sit by the waterôs edge.          Photo:  D. Martinek 
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A blurry photo of the ice plant that used to operate on the 
western rim of Coulson Lake.                        Photo:  UPHS 


